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NOW, MORE THAN EVER, THE UNIVERSITY IS PLACING THE HIGHEST

PRIORITY ON FISCAL RESOURCEFULNESS, INSTITUTIONAL EFFICIENCY,

AND QUALITY STUDENT SERVICES TO RETAIN ITS ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE.
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Dear Friends

It is a great honor to serve as the 15th president of the University 
of Minnesota and to be part of a 152-year legacy of cutting-edge discovery,
high-quality education, and vital outreach.

This has been a challenging year for the University of Minnesota. 
We took one of the larger cuts in state appropriations—15 percent for the
biennium—of any public university in the nation, but we are forging ahead,
working to ensure the excellence and vitality of the University for our
students and for the people of Minnesota in a time of fiscal austerity.

During this period, I’ve been heartened by the creativity and the
sense of shared sacrifice among our faculty, staff, and students. Truly, we are 
a human-capital-intensive enterprise; as such, only with the commitment of
our people can we preserve our academic strengths, minimize the impact of
these cuts, find new efficiencies, and look toward the best, long-term interest
of this institution. I believe we’ve accomplished these essential commitments
together.

Despite the difficult decisions we’ve had to make and the challenges
we face, I’m hard-pressed to think of a better time for a student or a scholar
to be at the University of Minnesota. Today, we shine with new and renovated
facilities, our academic reputation is similarly sterling, and we are teeming
with record levels of talented students. We are poised to become an even
greater institution; we will work to align our resources and assets in order 
to better leverage them, and we will continue to consult and collaborate with
a broad array of academic and community leaders.

Minnesota has a unique asset in the University, a land-grant
institution and one that performs more than 98 percent of the sponsored
research within Minnesota higher education. We look forward to remaining 
a vital asset to the state by advancing knowledge and serving as a partner 
for the public good.

Sincerely,

Robert H. Bruininks
President
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The University, through a business lens 

Imagine you’re the head of the third largest organization of its kind
in the nation and the fourth largest employer in Minnesota. You’re overseeing
a highly diversified conglomerate with annual revenues of about $2.1 billion, 
a workforce of about 18,000, more than 63,000 direct customers, and untold
thousands—even millions—of indirect consumers of your “goods.”

Such is the life of Robert Bruininks, who took the reins as president
of the University of Minnesota last year. Running the University, he has
observed, is remarkably similar to running a large, for-profit corporation,
however different the end products may be. 

Consider the similarities. Through a business lens, the University 
of Minnesota is a complex organization with many divisions and reporting
structures not unlike a corporation. Its board of directors, the Board of
Regents (appointed by the state legislature), sets broad priorities and
approves policies and budgets for the University. At the administrative level,

From hardware to software: 
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in addition to President Bruininks, there are vice presidents to oversee 
large structural components of the U, a chief financial officer, chancellors 
of campuses, deans of colleges, and directors to manage departments. 

The University makes large-scale, far-reaching business decisions on
an ongoing basis. In recent years, the U has made strategic investments in its
enterprise systems to more efficiently perform its business processes. Over the
past decade, when called upon to cut costs, it has reorganized major divisions,
reduced administrative base budgets, sold a major asset—the University
hospital—to an organization in a better position to operate it, and is the only
Midwest university to close a campus. 

And although there are no shares to buy, the University is certainly
worthy of investment. According to a recent study, the University leverages a
$600 million annual state investment, in combination with other University
financial activities, to create $3.3 billion in ripple effects on the state economy
each year. In addition, entrepreneurial faculty bring in roughly three times
their salary in federal research grants, and the University of Minnesota, Twin
Cities, ranks fourth in the country among universities in start-up companies
created as a result of university research innovations. 

A mission-driven organization

While the University of Minnesota is a large enterprise, its mission
sets it apart from most businesses. The bottom line here is neither building 
a better widget nor maximizing profit; it is creating and disseminating
knowledge—in fields from sociology to microbial biochemistry—in a world

THE UNIVERSITY IS A LEADER IN CONDUCTING

GROUNDBREAKING RESEARCH DESIGNED TO

IMPROVE LIVES—FROM EXPLORING ALTERNATIVE

ENERGY SOURCES AND DEVELOPING CURES FOR

DISEASES TO ENHANCING FOOD SYSTEMS AND

IMPROVING TRANSPORTATION. ABOVE, A WRAP-

AROUND, INDOOR DRIVING SIMULATOR TESTS

HUMAN REACTIONS AND SAFETY FACTORS.

Not only is the University of Minnesota

conducting business more efficiently 

online, it also is finding ways to purchase

computers and software packages more

efficiently—and for less money.

The University’s information technology

enterprise is, understandably, complex 

and broad, spread out over many colleges

and support units and at campuses all

around the state. In fact, with dozens of

departments ordering for their faculty,

staff, and students, it is estimated that the

University purchases approximately

10,000 desktop computers a year.

To address the challenge of supporting 

a complex technical environment, the

University is encouraging the purchase of

more machines with common configurations

and with the same, basic software packages,

according to associate vice provost and

chief information officer Steve Cawley.

Relatively simple, cost-efficient computers

are adequate for 90 percent of the people

who work and learn at the U, he says, and

by being smarter about buying computers,

the University stands to save millions of

dollars a year.

In addition, in June, the University entered

into a licensing agreement with Microsoft

for purchasing software.The deal provides

all faculty and staff with the right to use

the latest Microsoft Office software

package and the ability to upgrade to the

latest version of Microsoft Windows.The

agreement will help reduce the number of

operating systems the University needs to

support, further saving human resources.

The University’s information technology

decisions are not strictly about saving

money, Cawley notes.They’re about

purchasing smarter and reallocating the

savings to areas worthy of investment, like

state-of-the-art technology to support

classroom education and research.

Simplifying a complex IT environment
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economy that is increasingly knowledge-based. The University of Minnesota,
on all of its campuses, educates more than 63,000 students and awards more
than 11,000 degrees annually. 

The University’s “product line” extends far beyond classroom teaching.
The U conducts groundbreaking, news-making research—from enhancing
food systems and improving transportation to exploring alternative energy
sources and developing cures for diseases. And it connects with and assists
citizens of this state and beyond through a vast network of outreach efforts.

The University is highly accountable to its constituents and fulfills
its mission in exemplary fashion. For the second straight year, a report from 
the University of Florida—rating research institutions on a wide range of
criteria—named the University of Minnesota as one of the top three public
research universities in the nation.

While the University’s success in delivering on its three-part mission
may be well known to students, faculty, and many citizens of the state, other
measures of its success—its enhanced business acumen and growing attention
to efficient business practices—may have gone less noticed. 

“Our mission is not that of a typical business, but our investment
strategy, our search for efficiencies, and the entrepreneurial bent of our faculty
and staff all resemble those of our counterparts in the private, for-profit

Back in the fall of 2002, the University

was faced with a daunting task. It needed

to train almost its entire workforce (in

varying degrees, no less) about the privacy

and security of health care information.

And this needed to be accomplished by

April 14, 2003—a span of only six

months.The training was mandated by the

federal Health Insurance Portability and

Accountability Act—HIPAA for short.

Privacy and security coordinators at the

University weighed the options. Should 

they try to schedule in-person trainings 

with everyone, and how would that be 

done? How could they accommodate work

schedules and avoid loss of clinic time for

health care workers? Would they have to

try to arrange a training venue as 

large as the Hubert H. Humphrey

Metrodome in downtown Minneapolis?

For the answers, they turned to the

University’s vast network of resources—

specifically, its enterprise business systems

—to see if they could develop customized,

online training courses with complete

flexibility for trainees. And they could—

they created a password-protected system

that not only tracked completed training

modules, but also alerted employees to

training sessions yet to be completed.

The University’s solution was based on

looking inward, being creative, and

determining what electronic instructional

and tracking resources were available.

Says privacy officer Ross Janssen:

“We used what we have, and it worked

amazingly well.”

“Amazingly well” may well be an

understatement. Customized HIPAA

training programs were created for nearly

17,000 University workforce members. In

an eight-week span, 45,766 of the 46,851

HIPAA course units assigned were

completed—a compliance rate of 97.7

percent that was the envy of other schools.

It was such an astounding success that

other entities have asked to purchase the

HIPAA compliance and tracking package

from the U.The online systems used for

HIPAA training have also had other

applications at the University, from

trainings in the School of Nursing and

Medical School to the tracking of required

immunizations for health care students.

“It’s actually serving a lot of purposes,”

notes Janssen.

Spreading the word on privacy:
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world,” says Bruininks. “The truth is that we’re very well managed, and we
utilize ‘best practices’ in ways similar to most Fortune 500 companies.” 

Like many of its counterparts in the private sector, the University 
has been challenged by a struggling economy and sagging investment
returns. Just before the start of fiscal year 2003, the University absorbed a
reduction of $23.6 million in appropriated state funding. Late in fiscal year
2003, the University’s financial challenges were exacerbated by an announced
cut of $185 million in state appropriations for the 2004–05 biennium, which
began July 2003.

While the University has always operated with an eye toward sound
business practices and accountability, fiscal year 2003 has seen a heightened
emphasis on new, creative ways for providing better service while saving
money and operating more efficiently.

Enhancing service and productivity

The University’s commitment to accountability and efficiency starts
at the top. One of President Bruininks’s earliest initiatives—the Enhancing
Service and Productivity Initiative—began in October of 2002 with the
charge to “think creatively about ways the University can seize natural

U trains its workforce efficiently
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opportunities to enhance service and productivity while at the same time
reducing unnecessary costs across the University of Minnesota system.”

The initiative addresses a number of broad goals, including improving
service to students, bolstering the University’s internal economy, developing 
a process for the review of service units, and streamlining key business
practices. Committees formulated and submitted recommendations to 
the president in the summer and fall of 2003. Recommendations will be
implemented throughout 2003 and 2004.

The financial goal of the first 18 months of the initiative was to
enhance available resources by $5 million through a combination of cost
reductions and new revenue enhancements. “I’m fairly certain that it will be
greater than that,” says Charles Muscoplat, vice president for agricultural
policy and dean of the College of Agricultural, Food, and Environmental

From couch to cafe: Students take



Sciences, who is co-chairing the executive oversight group. He points out
that some of the early recommendations, such as better space utilization or
wellness practices to mollify increases in health care costs, are harder to put
price tags on, but still go a long way toward creating a more productive and
efficient University.

E-communication + E-commerce = Ease and Efficiency

The movement toward conducting more business online is certainly
not unique to the University of Minnesota, but the U is at the forefront of
capitalizing on e-communications and e-commerce—and saving money in 
the process.

Paycheck information, which used to be delivered to all employees 
in paper form, is now electronic for the vast majority, saving a considerable
amount of money. Moreover, faculty and staff—on one “self-service” Web
site—can now examine and/or update personal information, W-4 and W-2
forms, retirement accounts, and direct-deposit preferences.

Many colleges and support units are shifting communications from
print to electronic. Some have moved to e-mail to distribute newsletters to
faculty and staff, and others—notably the College of Agricultural, Food, 
and Environmental Sciences—have shifted nearly all their communications 
to online.

Perhaps the biggest beneficiaries of the University’s increased service
in e-communications and e-commerce are the students. No longer must
students page through course catalogs (although print catalogs are still
available) or wait in long lines or shuffle from building to building on the
Twin Cities campus to sign up for their classes. Today’s savvy students can

A decade ago, computers were still

something of a luxury away from school

and work, and online transactions for

students were in their infancy. Now, with

ubiquitous computing environments on and

off campus, the University has changed the

way students can do their business.

Name a student transaction, and odds are 

it can be accomplished in the comfort of

home, or perhaps at a computer kiosk

outside a classroom, or in a café down the

block. Students can now go online to apply

for admission, for on-campus housing, or

for financial aid; to register for classes; to 

buy textbooks; to check on final grades 

or progress toward a degree; even to pay

their tuition bills.

The option of online transactions offers

convenience to a generation that requests

and even expects such a service. It also

saves the University money and the Earth

a few trees. When the University of

Minnesota became one of the very first

colleges in the country to offer “paperless”

financial aid, it was estimated that the

process—which condenses into a few days

what used to take six to eight weeks—

annually saves the U a million sheets of

paper, a stack greater than the height of

the state capitol.

Says President Bruininks: “It makes a

huge difference when we leverage the

benefits of technology to make the

registration process, the application for

financial aid, and all the other services

that we provide students much more

effective and much more efficient.”

7

advantage of online convenience
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now go online, at their convenience, not only to register for classes but also 
to apply for financial aid, housing, and even admission to the University.

Facing budget challenges head-on

All businesses that provide employee benefits have been facing
extraordinary increases in health care costs, and the University is no exception.
In 2001, University costs under the State Employees Group Insurance
Program (SEGIP)—the health plan administered by the State of Minnesota,
of which the University was a part prior to 2002—were expected to increase
by more than 20 percent per year during the 2002–03 biennium. This would
have created $57 million in new costs to the U for the biennium. 

After long and careful consideration, the University decided to
withdraw from SEGIP and develop its own health insurance program, the
current UPlan. Having its own self-insured plan gives the University the
control it needs to address costs during these times of dramatic medical 
trend increases. The University is on track to save approximately $13 million
in the first two years of UPlan’s operation. An additional cost avoidance of

Walking toward wellness:



approximately $30 million is anticipated during the 2004 and 2005 calendar
years due to additional changes in the management of the plan. 

Other changes and reorganizations at the University have been
brought about—or intensified—by the University’s most recent budget
challenges. When it became apparent late in fiscal year 2003 that the
University would need to find ways to make up for the $185 million
reduction in state support for the 2004–05 biennium, the president asked
departments and units to find creative ways to find cost savings—be they
through improved efficiencies, new ways of doing business, or reorganization
—to minimize cuts to academic programs.

Facilities Management (FM), the arm of University Services
responsible for custodial care, maintenance, and utility services on the Twin
Cities campus, was already engaged in a continuous improvement initiative
and was one of the first units to answer the call. In January, after soliciting
suggestions from employees, FM implemented a major reorganization that
will save the University $10 million over the biennium.

Although saving money—in this case,

millions of dollars—was the primary motive

for developing its own health insurance

program, the University of Minnesota 

had other priorities when formulating its

UPlan.With its own program, the University

can offer its employees plans with greater

flexibility and it can also add an emphasis

on preventive care and promoting

employee wellness.

Through the UPlan, the University gives

faculty and staff plans that are tailored

specifically to meet their needs. A 

lowest-cost “base plan” offers affordable

coverage within a limited network of

providers. Additional plan options with

varying designs and provider networks 

offer a full range of preferences and out-

of-network coverage that can better

accommodate frequent travelers.

The idea for a wellness program picked up

speed when the UPlan was initiated, and,

in 2003, the University began formalizing

a wellness initiative—a systemwide

program designed to help employees

improve their physical and mental health,

raise morale, and keep health care costs

down (for both the University and its

employees).

The University’s campuses, with their

breadth of health-related services, are

perfectly suited for wellness activities.

“A company that is focused on one

product has to go completely outside 

for a program like this,” says Karen

Chapin, manager of health programs at

the University. “But here at the U we have

health services and rec centers on our

campuses; we have the School of Public

Health and all kinds of other organizations

already focused on wellness.”

A health fair and “Gopher Health Walk”

kicked off the wellness initiative on the 

Twin Cities campus in October 2003.

Future wellness programs are expected 

to focus on promoting health through

nutrition, exercise, and stress management;

managing diseases or conditions like

asthma and diabetes; and promoting

smart consumer health-care behavior.

A new plan for ensuring health

9



10

Continuing to flourish

Despite the struggling state and national economies and the immense
pressures on its own budget, the University of Minnesota is still flourishing—
attracting top students from the state and beyond and garnering unprecedented
levels of private support, which is providing funding for a growing number of
endowed chairs and student scholarships.

And the University has maintained its strong credit rating. For bonds
issued in May of 2003, both Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s assigned the
University of Minnesota their second highest rating (Aa2 and AA, respectively).
Notes the Moody’s report: “As the flagship public university of Minnesota and 
one of the leading educational and research institutions, the University maintains 
a very strong market position that will continue to translate into financial
stability.” Moody’s credited the University for its “engines of financial growth”
including investment return, new gifts, a disciplined budgeting process, and
appropriate expense controls.

The concluding paragraph in the Moody’s report summarizes all that 
the University could hope for in terms of recognition for its business success: 
“The stable outlook is based on Moody’s expectation that under its strong
leadership, the University of Minnesota will maintain and strengthen its
reputation as one of the nation’s leading public universities in terms of financial
resource base, academic reputation, and student demand.”

U earns praise for its “engines of 
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Introduction
This discussion and analysis of the University of
Minnesota’s consolidated financial statements provides
an overview of the consolidated financial position and
activities of the University for the years ended June
30, 2003 and 2002. The discussion has been prepared
by management and should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the
accompanying notes. 

The University of Minnesota is both the state’s land-
grant university, with a strong tradition of education
and public service, and a major research institution,
with faculty of national and international reputation.
Its statutory mission is to offer undergraduate, graduate,
and professional instruction through the doctoral degree,
and to be the primary state-supported academic
institution for research and extension services.

The University of Minnesota, founded in 1851, has
four campuses (Twin Cities, Duluth, Morris, Crookston),
a collaborative center at Rochester, research and
outreach centers, and extension service offices
throughout the state.

The Twin Cities campus is one of the three largest
campuses in the country in terms of enrollment
(approximately 48,700 students) and also one of 
the most comprehensive. It is the state’s major
research campus with expenditures of approximately
$411.6 million and $421.8 million in fiscal years
2003 and 2002, respectively, for research under various
programs funded by governmental and private sources.

The Duluth campus (approximately 9,800 students) 
is a comprehensive regional university that offers
instruction through the master’s degree and has unique
research strengths in natural and freshwater resources.

The Morris campus (approximately 1,900 students)
provides an innovative and high-quality residential
undergraduate liberal arts education to a very select
and intellectually gifted student body.

The Crookston campus (approximately 2,400 students)
provides career-oriented education at the baccalaureate
level, primarily in polytechnical disciplines.

The Rochester collaborative center is focused on meeting
the educational needs of students in the Rochester area
at the upper division and postbaccalaureate levels.

Mission
The University of Minnesota’s three mission activities
are instruction, research, and public service.

• Instruction: to provide instruction through a broad
range of educational programs that prepare
undergraduate, graduate, and professional students
for productive roles in society.

• Research: to generate and preserve knowledge,
understanding, and creativity by conducting
research, scholarship, and artistic activity.

• Public Service: to exchange the University’s
knowledge and resources with society by making
them accessible to the citizens of the state.

Operations
The University of Minnesota conducts its mission
activities at its campuses and other facilities
throughout the state. Each year, the University 
of Minnesota:

• provides instruction for more than 63,000 students;

• graduates approximately 11,000 students, 40 percent
with graduate or first professional degrees on the
Twin Cities campus;

• conducts research sponsored by the National
Institutes of Health, the National Science
Foundation, other federal agencies, and numerous
private companies and foundations;

• reaches out to more than one million Minnesotans
through various outreach and public service activities.

12
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Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Effective July 1, 2001, the
University adopted GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments, as amended
by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial
Statements—Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for
Public Colleges and Universities; Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; and
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Disclosures
(GASB accounting standards). These standards
established comprehensive new financial reporting
requirements for public colleges and universities,
requiring an economic-resources-measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting.

The consolidated financial statements required under
the new reporting standards include the Consolidated
Statements of Net Assets; the Consolidated Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets;
and the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. All
are reported on a consolidated basis for the University
as a whole, rather than on the fund basis used under
the former accounting model.

Consolidated Statements of Net Assets
The Consolidated Statements of Net Assets present
the consolidated financial position of the University 
at the end of the fiscal year, under a classified balance
sheet format that reflects current and noncurrent
assets and liabilities, and reports net assets under the
following three separate classifications:

• Unrestricted. Includes assets that are not subject 
to limitations or stipulations imposed by external
entities and that have not been set aside for capital 
or endowment purposes. These assets are available 
for any lawful purpose of the institution and include
resources that may be designated for specific purposes
as determined by management, financial, or Board 
of Regents policies.

• Restricted, which is divided into two categories—
expendable and nonexpendable. Expendable assets 
are available for expenditure by the institution, 
but only in accordance with restrictions placed 
on their use by donors and other external entities.
Nonexpendable assets are externally restricted, 
but are also required to be retained in perpetuity,
including the University’s true endowments and
institutional contributions to refundable loan programs.

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt. This
category includes property, plant, and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of debt attributable to these
capital assets.

The University’s consolidated assets, liabilities, and net
assets at June 30, 2003 and 2002, are summarized below
(in thousands of dollars).

2003 2002

Current assets $   626,710 $   511,457
Capital assets, net 1,837,689 1,789,695
Other noncurrent assets 981,964 1,063,686
Total assets 3,446,363 3,364,838

Current liabilities 846,435 629,255
Noncurrent liabilities 436,533 564,280
Total liabilities 1,282,968 1,193,535

Unrestricted 313,401 334,989
Restricted—expendable 515,079 486,067
Restricted—nonexpendable 192,604 188,742
Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt 1,142,311 1,161,505
Net assets $2,163,395 $2,171,303

Current assets at June 30, 2003, totaled $626.7 million,
an increase of 22.5 percent or $115.3 million over the
prior year. Current assets consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents, securities lending collateral, and net
receivables. State and federal appropriations receivable
decreased $21.9 million or 16.7 percent to $109.1
million at June 30, 2003, from $131.0 million at June
30, 2002. The decrease in the receivables was due to: 
a $10.2 million reduction in capital appropriations
receivable due to significantly reduced capital spending

13
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in fiscal 2003; a $9.2 million reduction in the state
general fund appropriation receivable due to a 
$25.0 million unallotment by the state, (also
contributing was a reduction in the University’s
approved state appropriation for fiscal 2003 of 
$23.6 million); and a $2.5 million reduction in the
federal appropriation receivable. 

Receivables from students amounted to $36.8 million
at both June 30, 2003 and 2002, net of estimated un-
collectible amounts of $2.5 million and $0.5 million,
at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The gross
receivable balance was fairly consistent from June 30,
2002, to June 30, 2003; however, the allowance for
uncollectable amounts did increase as a result of an
increase in overdue balances, due in part to rising
tuition and fees experienced during the past years.
Sponsored receivables, net of allowances, were 
$65.5 million and $77.8 million at June 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The decrease of $12.3 million or
15.8 percent is mainly a result of more timely billings
and collections of sponsored accounts. Trade and other
receivables, net of allowances, increased $9.3 million
or 18.2 percent to $60.7 million at June 30, 2003,
from $51.3 million at June 30, 2002. Several increases
in various departmental receivable accounts made up
the change, the most significant of which was an
increase of $2.4 million in the receivable for Prepaid
Medical Assistance Program (PMAP) funds from the
state of Minnesota. 

Total student loans receivable remained consistent at
$67.8 million, net of allowances of $3.8 million, at
June 30, 2003, from $66.8 million, net of allowances
of $4.1 million at June 30, 2002. 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
totaled $1,837.7 million, at June 30, 2003. Capital
assets increased $48.0 million or 2.7 percent over the
prior year. Fiscal 2003 saw significantly reduced
spending on capital projects as compared to the prior
year as several major projects were completed,
including the remodeling of Coffman Memorial
Union, the new Riverbend Commons Residence Hall
and Parking Complex, and the Molecular Cellular
Biology Building. Investment in buildings and
infrastructure assets grew to $1,490.5 million at 
June 30, 2003, an increase of $211.1 million or 
16.5 percent over the June 30, 2002, balance of

$1,279.4 million, while construction-in-progress
decreased to $46.0 million at June 30, 2003, from
$205.0 million at June 30, 2002. 

Other noncurrent assets totaled $982.0 million 
and $1,063.7 million at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, and include long-term endowment and
other investments of $844.8 million and $913.2
million, respectively. The 7.5 percent decrease in long-
term endowment and other investments is the result
of net realized losses as well as the annual distribution
of 5 percent of the three-year, moving average market
value of the endowment, partially offset by new
contributions to the endowment fund. Also included
in other noncurrent assets are unspent bond proceeds
that are earmarked for approved capital projects, and
the portion of student loan receivables scheduled for
collection beyond June 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Current liabilities totaled $846.4 million at 
June 30, 2003, up 34.5 percent or $217.2 million,
from $629.3 million at June 30, 2002. Current
liabilities consisted primarily of accounts payable,
securities lending collateral, and accrued liabilities 
and other, including significant expected obligations
under the University’s self-insured medical plan.
Current liabilities also included revenue related to
summer session tuition and fees deferred to the next
fiscal year, funds received in advance of expenditures
on sponsored accounts, and the current portion of
bonds payable.

Accounts payable of $63.8 million at June 30, 2003,
decreased $15.8 million or 19.9 percent from 
$79.6 million at June 30, 2002. The decrease is
mainly attributable to a significant decrease in
construction spending in fiscal year 2003 as compared
to fiscal year 2002. Securities lending collateral
increased $20.7 million or 66.9 percent to 
$51.7 million at June 30, 2003, up from $31.0
million at June 30, 2002, due to increased investing
activity in this area. 

Accrued liabilities and other remained relatively
consistent overall between June 30, 2003 and 2002 
at $168.1 million and $162.6 million, respectively,
made up primarily of the current portions of 
compensation and benefit accruals and the University’s
self-insurance reserves. Compensation and benefit



accruals increased $19.6 million or 20.7 percent to
$114.4 million at June 30, 2003. The increase was
primarily due to higher payroll accruals resulting from
a salary increase between years and one extra day of
accrued payroll versus June 30, 2002, and an increase
of $7.2 million in health and dental liability for
participants entering the termination severance, layoff
non-renewal plan offered by the University to address
budget issues in fiscal 2003 and beyond. This increase
was partially offset by decreases in prior severance
payments. The current portion of the University’s self-
insurance liability of $23.2 million at June 30, 2003,
was $5.9 million or 34.4 percent higher than June 30,
2002. Increases in the workers’ compensation liability
as well as the medical self-insurance liability were the
main contributors to the increase.

Unearned income of $103.6 million at June 30, 2003,
consists of revenue related to summer session tuition
and fees deferred to fiscal year 2004 and funds received
in advance of expenditures on sponsored accounts.
This balance increased $13.9 million or 15.5 percent
over June 30, 2002, due to an increase in summer
session tuition and fees and enrollment rates as well as
increased revenue received in advance of expenditures
on sponsored accounts. 

Four of the University’s bond issuances totaling
$362.0 million have demand provisions that require
the University to repurchase the bonds upon notice
from bondholders. At June 30, 2002, the University
had a long-term standby purchase agreement to
provide liquidity support for only the Series 2001C
bonds. As of June 30, 2003, the Series 2001C standby
purchase agreement was no longer classified long-term
as it was set to expire in December 2003, and the
University did not renew the standby purchase
agreement. Although management believes that all of
these bonds will continue to be paid according to the
original noncurrent payment schedules, $362.0 million
and $252.6 million were reported as current liabilities
at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Included in
these totals are all of the outstanding obligations
under the Series 1999A, 2001A, 2001B, and 2001C
bonds for the year ended June 30, 2003. Included at
June 30, 2002, were all of the outstanding obligations
under the Series 1999A, 2001A, and 2001B bonds
and a portion of the Series 2001C bond that would be

due within the next year if the standby purchase
agreement were exercised for the year then ended.

Noncurrent liabilities, totaling $436.5 million 
and $564.3 million at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, primarily included principal amounts due
on University bonds and long-term vacation and other
compensation-related liabilities. As discussed above,
the University’s Series 2001C bonds that were
disclosed as noncurrent at June 30, 2002, have been
moved to current liabilities at June 30, 2003. This
change in classification resulted in the decrease in 
long-term debt at June 30, 2003, of $136.6 million 
or 30.1 percent.

Beginning net assets for the year ended June 30, 2002,
were restated to reflect implementation of the new
GASB accounting standards. The restated amounts
were recorded as a cumulative effect of change in
accounting principles. These changes were as follows:

• Unexpended cash advances received for sponsored
programs were recorded as unearned income. In
years prior to the change, such advance payments
were recognized as revenue immediately, and the
change related to prior fiscal years reduced
beginning net assets by $69.0 million.

• Federal Capital Contributions to the Perkins Loan
program, ultimately refundable if new student 
loan originations cease, were reclassified to liabilities,
with a decrease to beginning net assets of $54.2
million. Previously, the amounts received from the
federal government were considered to be part of 
net equity.

• Revenues for summer session were prorated between
fiscal years, based on the revenue earnings stream;
expenses related to the delivery of these courses 
were matched to the revenue. In prior years,
summer session revenue was recorded in the period
in which the majority of the session occurred.

• Adjustments to the useful lives of infrastructure
assets, defined as long-lived capital assets that
normally can be preserved for a significantly greater
number of years than most capital assets, were also
recorded as a change in accounting principle.
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Consolidated Statements of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
The Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Assets present the institution’s
operating, nonoperating, and capital- and endowment-
related financial activity during the year. This
statement differentiates between operating and
nonoperating revenues and expenses, and displays 
the net income or loss from operations. Operating
revenues are those generated by the University’s
principal ongoing operations such as tuition,
sponsored research grants and contracts, and sales and
services provided by the University’s educational and
self-supporting auxiliary units. State appropriations,
under GASB Statement No. 34, are considered
nonoperating revenues, as are gifts and other revenues
for which the University does not give equal value in
exchange for the resources received.

The University’s consolidated revenues, expenses, and
changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2003 and
2002, are summarized as follows (in thousands of dollars):

2003 2002

Operating revenues
Student tuition 
and fees (net) $   348,675 $   293,127
Grants and contracts 526,298 508,328
Auxiliary enterprises (net) 229,367 206,721
Educational activities 113,746 99,440
Federal appropriations 15,562 18,215
Other revenues 3,710 4,833

Total operating revenues 1,237,358 1,130,664

Operating expenses 2,117,739 2,000,156
Operating loss (880,381) (869,492)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
State appropriations 633,747 643,088
Grants and gifts 214,135 203,895
Net investment gain (loss) 17,723 (56,719)
Interest expense (29,420) (22,400)
Other nonoperating 
expenses (net) (1,022) (1,432)

Loss before other revenues (45,218) (103,060)

Capital appropriations 5,502 81,711
Capital and endowment gifts
and grants 31,808 23,631

Total other revenues 37,310 105,342

Increase (decrease) in net assets (7,908) 2,282
Net assets, beginning of year 2,171,303 2,281,059
Cumulative effect of change 
in accounting principles – (112,038)

Net assets, end of year $2,163,395 $2,171,303
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The following graphs illustrate the sources of the
University’s operating and nonoperating revenues for the
years ended June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2002. 

One of the University’s strengths is that it is not
overly dependent on any of its four main sources of
revenue: student tuition and fees, grants and contracts,
sales by auxiliary and educational units, and state
appropriations. As a result of implementing the new
GASB accounting standards, the student tuition and
fees and auxiliary revenues have been reduced by
scholarship and fellowship amounts already recognized
as revenues. These changes eliminate the double
counting of revenues that result from recording gifts
received for scholarships and the tuition or auxiliary
revenue from recipients of such scholarships. 

For the year ended June 30, 2003, student tuition and
fees totaled $348.7 million, net of $81.4 million of
scholarship allowances. This revenue represents an
increase of $55.5 million or 19.0 percent over the year
ended June 30, 2002 with student tuition and fees 
of $293.1 million, net of $68.3 million of scholarship
allowances. The increase in student tuition and fees
revenue was due to tuition and University fee increases
that ranged from 10 to 16 percent depending on
campus and student level, as well as increased
enrollment and average credit hours of 3.9 percent 
and 4.5 percent, respectively.

Grants and contracts from the federal government
totaled $323.5 million in fiscal year 2003, up slightly
from $319.8 million in fiscal year 2002. State and
other governmental grants decreased $5.5 million, or
12.5 percent, to $38.4 million for fiscal 2003 from
$43.9 million for fiscal 2002. This reduction reflects 
a decrease in new grant activity. Nongovernmental
grants and contracts of $164.5 million for fiscal 2003
did increase by $19.8 million or 13.7 percent over 
the prior year, due in part to new grant activity, 
but mainly due to classification changes that caused
some large grants to be classified as exchange 
versus nonexchange due to the nature of the grants.
Exchange grants are recorded as operating revenues,
while nonexchange grants are recorded under
nonoperating revenues as gifts or nonexchange grants. 
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Auxiliary revenues increased $22.6 million or 
11.0 percent to $229.4 million, net of $8.6 million 
of scholarship allowances for the year ended June 30,
2003, up from $206.7 million, net of $7.3 million 
of scholarship allowances for the year ended June 30,
2002. The most significant changes affecting this
increase include the opening of the Riverbend
Commons housing and increases in rates for all
residence halls; the East River Road parking garage
was open for the full year during fiscal 2003 and
parking rates were increased for this period; and
athletic revenues rose due to slight increases in ticket
prices, higher attendance, and more home games in
fiscal 2003 than fiscal 2002. 

Revenues from sales and services of educational
activities for fiscal 2003 were $113.7 million, up
$14.3 million or 14.4 percent from the prior year
revenues of $99.4 million. Approximately $9.0 million
of this increase is the result of increases in royalty
receipts for sales of products using University
technology or patents. Other contributing factors 
to the growth in revenue include an increase in
enrollment in Global Campus programs, increased
revenue from ticket sales to the Northrop performances
by the Russian Balshoi Ballet in fiscal 2003, and a new
test developed by the University’s Veterinary Medical
diagnostic lab to test deer for chronic wasting disease.

State operating appropriations totaled $633.7 million
for fiscal 2003, down $9.3 million from $643.1 million
for fiscal 2002. These totals include state general fund
appropriations as well as special appropriations
designated by the state. During fiscal 2003, the
University’s state general fund appropriation was
reduced by $23.6 million as well as by an additional
$25.0 million unallotment, resulting in a final general
fund appropriation for fiscal 2003 of $616.2 million,
as compared to the general fund appropriation for fiscal
2002 of $628.1 million. This decrease in state general
fund appropriations will continue into fiscal 2004
with an approved appropriation of $540.7 million.
This will effectively bring the amount of state general
fund support back to the level received in 1998. The
state has approved a general fund appropriation of
$543.8 million for fiscal 2005, with the slight
increase over fiscal 2004 representing funding for
projected increased student enrollment.

This source of funding, in addition to other sources 
of unrestricted revenue (tuition and educational and
auxiliary activities) and nonoperating grants totaling
$120.1 million, fund a number of University priorities
including competitive compensation plans for faculty
and staff; various academic initiatives; enhancement of
services to students including technology improvements,
upgrades to the financial aid process, and freshman
seminars; and increases in facilities costs. 

As a result of the significant decrease in state 
support, the University has made difficult budget
decisions that will impact fiscal years 2004, 2005, 
and beyond. The University’s approach to share the
solution includes reductions in administrative and
operating costs; targeted eliminations, reductions and
consolidations; enhanced institutional revenues; and
increased student tuition and fee revenue. 

Included in the reduction in administrative and
operating costs is a salary and wage freeze for fiscal
2004, along with increases to health care premium
costs for employees, both subject to collective
bargaining. In addition, the University mandated
operating expense reductions and cost controls, 
as well as improved purchasing practices. Another
decision that was made to address the reduction 
in funding was to increase student tuition and the
University fee from one to 15 percent depending 
on campus and student level for fiscal 2004. The
University is still assessing the impact of budget
reductions and cost increases on potential tuition 
and University fee levels for fiscal 2005.

Other significant sources of revenue to the University
included donations and gifts in support of operating
expenses of $94.0 million and $89.1 million, and gifts
for capital purposes of $29.9 million and $21.5 million
in fiscal years 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Capital appropriations are awarded biennially, and the
amount approved by the state of Minnesota in fiscal
year 2002 totaled $97.9 million, including funding
for preservation and replacement of campus facilities,
classroom improvements, and new construction and
renovation of facilities on three campuses. The
University records state capital appropriation revenue
only when approved capital expenditures have been
incurred. Capital appropriations recorded in fiscal
2003 were $5.5 million, down significantly from the
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amount recorded in fiscal 2002 of $81.7 million. This
reduction is the result of reduced spending on capital
projects during fiscal 2003. 

Total expenses by functional category are illustrated below.

Across almost all functional categories, salaries and
compensation-related expenditures continued to
represent the most significant expense to the University
at $1.4 billion, or 66.1 percent of operating expenses 
in 2003. Effective January 1, 2002, the University
initiated a self-insured health plan, moving away 
from the Minnesota State Employee Group Insurance
Program (SEGIP), in which the University had been 
a participant since 1964. The change was made in the
interest of gaining more control over the management
of health care benefits; containing the rising cost of
health care, which is projected to increase 20 percent
per year through 2004; and tailoring benefits to meet
the expressed needs of employees. Additional details
on the self-insurance programs can be found in Note 9
of the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows present
information about changes in the University’s cash
position using the direct method of reporting sources
and uses of cash. The direct method reports all major
cash inflows and outflows at gross amounts,
differentiating these activities into cash flows arising
from operating activities; noncapital financing, such 
as nonexchange grants and contributions; capital
financing, including bond proceeds from debt issued
to purchase or construct buildings and other capital
assets; and investing activities.

The University’s cash flows for the years ended 
June 30, 2003 and 2002, are summarized below 
(in thousands of dollars).

2003 2002

Cash provided (used) by
Operating activities $(715,127) $(760,429)
Noncapital financing 
activities 856,125 878,968
Capital and related 
financing activities (126,959) (62,292)
Investing activities 88,059 28,338

Net change in cash 102,098 84,585
Cash, beginning of the year 238,622 154,037
Cash, end of the year $ 340,720 $ 238,622
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The University’s cash and cash equivalents increased
$102.1 million due to the inflow of funds provided 
by noncapital financing and investing activities, and
was partially offset by the use of funds for capital
acquisitions and related financing activities. The most
significant sources of cash provided by noncapital
financing activities included state appropriations
totaling $642.7 million, grants of $115.7 million, and
gifts of $94.7 million in fiscal year 2003. Cash inflows
for capital acquisitions from state appropriations, gifts
and grants, and bonds issued during the year funded
the University’s equipment needs and ongoing
renovation and construction initiatives.

Investment Activities
The endowment funds of the University are invested
to preserve the inflation-adjusted value of the
endowment and to maximize total return within
acceptable risk parameters. These objectives are meant
to be achieved over three- to five-year periods. Given
the current, challenging investment environment, the
endowment portfolio has not been able to maintain its
inflation-adjusted value for the most recent three-year
period. For longer-term five- and ten-year periods, the
strong performance of the equity markets was more
than adequate to allow the endowment funds to
achieve this objective.

During fiscal year 2003, the market value of
endowment funds decreased approximately 
$25.5 million. This decrease was primarily the 
result of net investment losses totaling $10.1 million
and distributions of $32.6 million to departments 
for spending purposes, partially offset by new
contributions to the endowment funds and
reinvestments of distributions.

To provide a relatively stable level of support for
endowed programs, a specified percent of a three-year,
moving average market value of the endowment is
distributed each year. These distributions provide
funds for a variety of purposes, including instructional
needs, research activities, scholarships, and academic
support. An endowment spending policy requires
balancing current needs with the long-term focus 
of the institution. At the beginning of year 2002, 
the University reduced the endowment funds

distribution rate from 5.50 percent to 5.25 percent
mid-year, to 5.00 percent beginning July 1, 2003.
This adjustment was made according to University
policy, which links the distribution rate to the ability
to maintain the real value of the endowment funds.

Capital and Debt Activities
Capital additions totaled $180.9 million in fiscal year
2003. Total additions were down significantly from
the prior year’s total additions of $322.4 million as
several significant projects were in the final stages of
completion in fiscal 2003. These completed projects
include the Molecular and Cellular Biology building,
Coffman Memorial Union remodeling, and the Art
Teaching and Research building. As a result of the
decreased capital spending, cash provided by capital
appropriations decreased to $29.4 million in fiscal
2003 from $96.4 million in fiscal 2002. 

Bonds and other debt payable totaled $775.6 million
at June 30, 2003, and included proceeds from bonds
issued during fiscal year 2003 totaling $71.0 million,
and capital leases and debt service obligations related
to state of Minnesota infrastructure development
bonds of $10.7 million. The University’s bonds were
used, along with additional funds provided by the
University, to refund the University’s $84.0 million
Series 1993A General Obligation Bonds on August
15, 2003. Additional details on capital and long-term
debt activities can be found in Notes 4 and 5 of the
consolidated financial statements.

The University is very serious about its role of
financial stewardship and works hard to manage its
financial resources effectively, including the prudent
use of debt to finance capital projects. There have 
been no significant changes in credit ratings or debt
limitations that may affect future financing for the
University. Both Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s
Investors Services assigned excellent ratings to the
$71.0 million General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003A, issued in May 2003. Their stable
outlook reflects the University’s creditworthiness, 
its position as the state’s flagship higher education
institution, competitive demand trends and stable
enrollment, solid financial performance, high levels of
unrestricted monies, and a manageable debt burden.
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The long-term, stable outlook anticipates that a
potentially weak state-funding environment will be
countered by rising student demand, strong private
support and research funding, and the benefits of new
capital investments.

The University continues to execute its long-range
plan to modernize and expand its teaching, research,
and public service facilities. The Board of Regents
approved a six-year capital budget plan that calls 
for the investment of $735.0 million in capital
improvements through fiscal year 2008, including
financial support of $508.0 million from the state 
of Minnesota and $227.0 million of University
financing, including $152.0 million of fund-raising
and local unit resources. The capital plan balances
expenditures for renovation and renewal with the need
for new and modern facilities. The goals of the capital
plan are to advance new—and strengthen existing—
teaching, research, and public service priorities; offer
the best student experience as a research university;
renew our campuses through stewardship of public
investments; and manage long-term financing
requirements and future operating costs. Levels of
state funding, changes in the University’s priorities,
ability to generate fund-raising and private investment
goals identified in the plan, and unknown project
complexities could alter the University’s decision 
to fully implement this capital plan.

Economic Factors That Will Affect
the Future
In the course of the last fiscal year, financial markets
and economic conditions have continued to be
challenging. The University entered this period in
excellent financial health. 

Looking toward the future, management believes that
the University is well positioned to continue its strong
financial position and level of excellence in service to
students, faculty, staff, and the citizens of the state of
Minnesota. The University’s strong financial position,
strong leadership, and responsive management decision
making has served to ease recent financial challenges
brought about by the recent economic downturn and its
impact on state revenues. The University has ongoing

efforts toward revenue diversification and cost contain-
ment that will assist the University in continuing to
provide the necessary resources to support excellence
in its teaching, research, and public service missions.

The University’s strong financial position, as evidenced
by its annual consolidated financial statements, its
diverse revenue streams, strong student demand, and
success in research funding and private gifts and
grants, will continue to enable the University to
advance in many key areas. Private gifts are an
important supplement to the fundamental support
from the state of Minnesota and student tuition, and
represent a crucial ‘tipping point’ in the advancement
of the quality of academic units. The University
recently completed a highly successful capital
campaign that resulted in approximately $1.6 billion
in new restricted resources for academic programs,
scholarships, and capital facilities and equipment. 
The University intends to build on this success and 
to focus future fund-raising activities in the areas of
financial aid and scholarships.

The University intends to continue employing long-
term investment strategies to maximize total returns
of its endowment, at an appropriate level of risk. 
The value of all funds managed by the University,
including the consolidated endowment fund, long-
term reserves, and short-term reserves, totaled
approximately $1.24 billion on June 30, 2003,
compared to $1.18 billion the prior year, net of
investment gains and losses and the impact of
distributions to academic units of the institution. 
The University will continue to utilize a prudent
spending-rate policy for its consolidated endowment
that will help insulate University operations from
temporary market volatility.

A crucial element to the University’s future will be to
strengthen our financial partnership with the state of
Minnesota. Near-term economic conditions facing the
state of Minnesota have necessitated budget reductions
to nearly all levels of public institutions. The
University of Minnesota will experience a significant
reduction in state support during fiscal year 2004
compared to levels provided in fiscal year 2003. 
The University’s response to the financial challenge
has been to share the solution between lowering
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administrative and operational costs, reducing the
number of employees, and increasing revenues. There
is a direct relationship between the level of state
support and the University’s ability to control tuition
growth—a decline in state appropriations places an
increasing burden on students, which most often
manifests itself through a combination of program
reductions and increased tuition levels. Recent state
appropriation reductions have directly translated into
higher tuition costs, as well as declines in programs
and services. The University has recently initiated a
concentrated effort to improve service and productivity
in both academic and support units; it expects to
capture significant financial benefits through changes
in operational practices and through leveraging of
smarter purchasing practices. 

As a labor-intensive organization, the University faces
competitive pressures and escalating costs relating to
faculty and staff. The cost of the University’s health
benefits has increased in recent years to more than
$100 million in 2003, with the increasing cost of
medical care and prescription drugs of particular
concern. In response to the increasing cost of health
benefits, the University had taken direct control of 
its health insurance programs in fiscal year 2002. As 
a result, management continues to focus on areas of
cost containment including active benchmarking to
market conditions and the appropriate distribution of
health benefit costs between employer and employee.

The University’s outstanding debt totaled 
$775.6 million on June 30, 2003. The weighted
average cost of capital was 4.72 percent per the
original bond agreements, and the average life of debt
was 12.39 years with 93 percent fixed and 7 percent
variable. An analysis of student demand, market
position, and financial indicators places the University
of Minnesota solidly in the strong “Aa” category, as
rated by Moody’s Investors Services. These indicators
suggest a high level of debt capacity. Debt capacity
and credit ratings are not a function of ratios alone,
but are highly dependent on other factors such as debt
strategy, essentiality of debt, future fund-raising,
revenue-producing capability, and debt structure. 

The University is seeking a 2004 capital appropriation
from the state of Minnesota totaling $155.5 million,
which will leverage a University contribution of 
$33.2 million through modest additional debt
proceeds, internal resources, and gifts. The University’s
six-year capital plan, which includes the 2004 capital
appropriation request to the state, reflects a long-
range strategic plan to “take care of what we have 
and to shape the future.” Approximately 73 percent 
of the current six-year capital plan reflects the renewal
and renovation of existing facilities, while the
remaining 27 percent is targeted for the construction
of critical new facilities primarily focused on support
of the Institute of Technology and the expansion of
business schools on the Twin Cities and the Duluth
campuses. 

As solid as the University’s financial and operational
accomplishments have been during the past year,
University management believes that it can
accomplish even more. Because of the strength and
commitment of the faculty, staff, and students, the
University has positioned itself well to respond to
future opportunities and challenges.
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To the Board of Regents, University of Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
statements of net assets of the University of Minnesota
(the University) as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and
the related consolidated statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows 
for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the University’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the University adopted the provisions of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements—
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and
Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s

Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and
Universities; GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—
for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; and GASB
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures, as of July 1, 2001.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the University 
as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated
changes in revenues, expenses, and net assets and cash
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
on pages 12 to 22 is not a required part of the financial
statements but is supplemental information required
by the GASB. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,
we will issue a separate report dated October 10, 
2003, on our consideration of the University’s internal
control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Deloitte and Touche, LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
October 10, 2003
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2003 2002
Assets
Current assets Cash and cash equivalents $ 262,618 $ 149,554

Securities lending collateral 51,742 30,997
Short-term investments ,805 ,750
Receivables, net 272,065 296,970
Inventories 17,593 17,737
Current portion of student loan receivables, net 12,879 9,124
Current portion of prepaid expenses and deferred charges 8,808 6,125
Other assets ,200 ,200

Total current assets 626,710 511,457
Noncurrent assets Restricted cash and cash equivalents 78,102 89,068

Investments 844,780 913,162
Receivables, net 1,706 1,480
Student loan receivables, net 54,921 57,724
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 2,355 2,141
Other assets ,100 ,111
Capital assets, net 1,837,689 1,789,695

Total noncurrent assets 2,819,653 2,853,381
Total assets 3,446,363 3,364,838

Liabi l i t ies
Current liabilities Accounts payable 63,819 79,635

Accrued liabilities and other 168,069 162,630
Securities lending collateral 51,742 30,997
Unearned income 103,649 89,726
Long-term debt—current portion 459,156 266,267

Total current liabilities 846,435 629,255
Noncurrent liabilities Accrued liabilities and other 119,391 109,974

Unearned income ,700 1,300
Long-term debt 316,442 453,006

Total noncurrent liabilities 436,533 564,280
Total liabilities 1,282,968 1,193,535

Net Assets
Unrestricted 313,401 334,989
Restricted Expendable 515,079 486,067

Nonexpendable 192,604 188,742
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,142,311 1,161,505

Total net assets $2,163,395 $2,171,303

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002
Revenues
Operating Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances of 
revenues $81,379 in 2003; $68,314 in 2002 $ 348,675 $ 293,127

Federal appropriations 15,562 18,215
Federal grants and contracts 323,467 319,825
State and other government grants 38,368 43,866
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 164,463 144,637
Student loan interest income 1,719 1,851
Sales and services of educational activities 113,746 99,440
Auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship allowances of $8,628 in 2003; 
$7,346 in 2002. Revenues of $2,893 in 2003; $2,663 in 2002 were 
pledged as security for various auxiliary revenue bonds 229,367 206,721

Other operating revenues 1,991 2,982
Total operating revenues 1,237,358 1,130,664

Expenses
Operating Education Instruction 569,375 534,251
expenses and general Research 411,568 421,796

Public service 158,913 152,237
Academic support 271,990 244,035
Student services 68,140 66,995
Institutional support 118,340 103,656
Operation and maintenance of plant 160,240 148,252
Scholarships and fellowships 67,461 58,989
Depreciation 129,191 119,041

Auxiliary enterprises 161,625 150,418
Other operating expenses ,896 ,486

Total operating expenses 2,117,739 2,000,156

Operat ing  Loss (880,381) (869,492)

Nonoperat ing  Revenues  (Expenses)
State appropriations 633,747 643,088
Grants 120,124 114,816
Gifts 94,011 89,079
Investment income 24,472 24,880
Net decrease in the fair market value of investments (6,749) (81,599)
Interest on capital asset-related debt (29,420) (22,400)
Other nonoperating expenses, net (1,022) (1,432)

Net nonoperating revenues 835,163 766,432

Loss  Before  Other  Revenues (45,218) (103,060)
Capital appropriations 5,502 81,711
Capital grants and gifts 29,869 21,503
Additions to permanent endowments 1,939 2,128

Total other revenues 37,310 105,342

(Decrease)  Increase in  Net  Assets (7,908) 2,282

Net Assets
Net assets at beginning of year before cumulative effect of change in accounting principles 2,171,303 2,281,059

Cumulative  Change in method of accounting for unearned income – (61,771)
effect of change  Change in method of accounting for refundable capital –
in accounting contributions (54,243)
principles Change in method of accounting for capital and other assets – 3,976

Net assets at beginning of year, restated 2,171,303 2,169,021
Net assets at end of year $ 2,163,395 $2,171,303

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002
Cash Flows from Operat ing  Act iv i t ies

Student tuition and fees $ 348,875 $ 287,203
Federal appropriations 17,988 16,562
Grants and contracts (federal, state, nongovernmental, other) 530,990 488,045
Sales and services of educational activities 113,228 98,726
Auxiliary enterprises 235,900 207,322
Other operating revenues 1,770 3,975
Payments to employees for services (1,087,142) (1,032,331)
Payments for fringe benefits (303,864) (274,201)
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (513,555) (502,339)
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (61,807) (55,084)
Loans issued to students (16,194) (12,199)
Collection of loans to students 18,684 13,892

Net cash used in operating activities (715,127) (760,429)

Cash Flows from Noncapi t a l  Financing Act iv i t ies
State appropriations 642,711 684,693
Grants for other than capital purposes 115,725 99,572
Gifts for other than capital purposes 94,655 88,170
Private gifts for endowment purposes 1,939 2,128
Other nonoperating revenues, net ,735 2,387
Direct lending receipts 206,691 172,113
Direct lending disbursements (206,639) (171,795)
Agency transactions ,308 1,700

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 856,125 878,968

Cash Flows from Capi t a l  and Related Financing Act iv i t ies
Capital appropriations 29,445 96,378
Capital grants and gifts 26,345 20,996
Proceeds from capital debt 70,823 179,609
Payments for bond issuance costs – (328)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets – ,827
Purchases of capital assets (197,090) (311,540)
Principal paid on capital debt (25,230) (21,851)
Interest paid on capital debt (31,252) (26,383)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (126,959) (62,292)

Cash Flows from Invest ing  Act iv i t ies
Investment income, net 28,709 25,875
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 2,203,278 998,710
Purchase of investments (2,143,928) (996,247)

Net cash provided by investing activities 88,059 28,338

Net Increase in  Cash 102,098 84,585

Cash at  Beginning of  Year 238,622 154,037

Cash at  End of  Year $ 340,720 $ 238,622

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002

Reconci l ia t ion  of  Net  Operat ing  Revenues  (Expenses)  to  Net  Cash 
Used in  Operat ing  Act iv i t ies

Operating loss $(880,381) $(869,492)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to 
net cash used for operating activities

Depreciation expense 129,191 119,041
Changes in assets and liabilities

Receivables, net 4,964 (22,675)
Inventories ,408 ,850
Prepaid and other items (1,683) 4,378
Accounts payable 1,575 (10,329)
Accrued liabilities 20,688 24,118
Unearned income 10,111 (6,320)

Net Cash Used in  Operat ing  Act iv i t ies $(715,127) $(760,429)

Noncash Transact ions
Borrowing under capital lease $ (1,663) $ (2,259)
Equipment 1,663 2,259

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1. Organization, Basis of
Presentation, and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

The University of Minnesota (the University) is both 
a state land-grant university, with a strong tradition 
of education and public service, and a major research
institution serving the state of Minnesota through four
campuses: Crookston, Duluth, Morris, and Twin Cities.

The University is considered a constitutional
corporation and an agency of the state of Minnesota.
As a result of this unique status, authority to govern
the University is reserved to the Board of Regents
rather than state law. The University complies 
with state law when specifically included by statute 
or when compliance does not conflict with the
University’s ability to accomplish its mission and
purpose as established by the constitution of the 
state of Minnesota.

Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity for the University of
Minnesota includes the financial results of the four
campuses and RUMINCO, Ltd. (a wholly owned
captive insurance company). In accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the
four foundations affiliated with the University—
the University of Minnesota Foundation, Minnesota
Medical Foundation, Minnesota Landscape Arboretum
Foundation, and the Minnesota 4-H Foundation—are
not included in the financial statements because they
are separate legal entities, and the University does not
appoint any members of their respective boards. The
condensed financial statements of the foundations are
reported in Note 7.

Also, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, 
the University is considered a part of the financial
reporting entity of the state of Minnesota and is
discretely presented in the state of Minnesota’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that the
University is an integral part of the state of Minnesota.
As an integral part of the state, the University is
generally exempt from federal income taxes, although
certain activities are subject to federal unrelated
business income tax. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles prescribed by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Effective July 1, 2001, the University adopted GASB
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and
Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and
Universities; Statement No. 37, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—
for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; and Statement
No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Disclosures. These
statements are prepared on a consolidated, entity-wide
basis. All significant interfund balances have been
eliminated upon consolidation.

Basis of Accounting 

The University is considered to be a special purpose
government engaged primarily in business type
activities (BTA). As a BTA, the University prepares 
its financial statements using the accrual basis of
accounting and the economic-resources-measurement
focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue
and expense are recognized when earned or incurred. 

As a GASB institution, the University has the 
option of applying pronouncements issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) after
November 30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with
GASB. The University has elected not to adopt FASB
pronouncements issued after the applicable date. 
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Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows, the University defines cash
and cash equivalents as highly liquid, short-term 
(90 days or less) investments that bear no market risk.
Cash equivalents held in the Consolidated Endowment
Fund (CEF), the Group Income Pool (GIP), and the
Separately Invested Funds (SIF) are included in
investments because the intent of these pools is long-
term appreciation. Any cash balances held at the date
of the statements are due to the timing of reinvesting
the proceeds within the funds. 

Investments — Investments in securities are reported at
market value as determined by the major securities
markets. Market values of thinly traded alternative
investments, including venture capital and real estate
investments, are generally based on investment
manager quarterly valuation estimates rather than
established market rates. As a result, these investments
bear a greater risk that the reported value may be
materially different than actual value. Purchases and
sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.
Investment income is reported on the accrual basis
and includes interest income and endowment income
(interest earned on endowments but allocated to other
funds). Realized and unrealized gains and losses are
reported as a net increase (decrease) in the fair market
value of investments. 

The University uses derivative instruments for a
variety of purposes. Financial futures are used to
maintain investment portfolio asset allocations in
accordance with institutional policy. Forward foreign
exchange contracts are used to hedge foreign currency
exposure while interest rate swaps are used to manage
the cost of debt. Financial futures and forward foreign
exchange contracts are recorded on the contract date
and are carried at fair value using listed price quotations
or amounts that approximate fair value. The University
is required to post collateral, typically U.S. Treasury
bills, for derivative contracts held. Collateral required
by these contracts is monitored daily and required
deposits or withdrawals are made as necessary. 

In general, the University follows the Uniform
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UMIFA), 
as adopted in Minnesota, for donor-restricted
endowments. Under UMIFA, the Board of Regents
determines the prudent amount of realized and
unrealized endowment appreciation to be allocated 
to fund current operations. Investment of the realized
or unrealized appreciation in excess of the annual
spending limits is discussed in Note 2. 

Inventories — Inventories held for resale are carried at
the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market value.
Other inventories are carried primarily at cost, which
approximates market value.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents — Restricted 
cash and cash equivalents represent unspent bond
proceeds of $78,102 at June 30, 2003, and $89,068 
at June 30, 2002, respectively, which are externally
restricted for the construction or purchase of buildings
or other capital assets. Although these funds meet the
University’s definition of cash and cash equivalents,
they are recorded as long-term assets to be consistent
with the purpose for which the funds are required to
be used—for long-term capital projects. 

Capital Assets — Land, buildings, and other property 
are recorded at cost if purchased or constructed, or at
market value on the date of gift, if received by gift or
bequest. Interest expense of $31,156 and $27,139 was
incurred during construction for the years ended June
30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, of which $1,736 and
$4,739 was capitalized as a cost of the assets
constructed. Depreciation is determined using the
straight-line method, based on the estimated useful
lives of the assets. 

The following schedule summarizes the useful lives
and capitalization threshold for capitalized,
depreciable assets.

Useful life Capitalization
Asset Category (in years) threshold

Buildings and improvements 10–40 $50,000
Leasehold improvements Lease term 50,000
Infrastructure 20–40 50,000
Equipment – technology 3–12 2,500
Equipment – other 3–20 2,500
Library and reference books 10 N/A
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The University maintains certain collections (works 
of art or historical treasures) for public exhibition,
education, or research in furtherance of public service.
These collections are preserved, unencumbered, and
cannot be disposed of for financial gain (proceeds from
sales of collection items must be used to acquire other
items for the collections). As such, the collections are
not capitalized for financial statement reporting
purposes.

Unearned Income — Unearned income represents
amounts received for tuition, auxiliary services, and
grants and contracts prior to fiscal year-end but not
yet earned. 

Noncurrent Liabilities — Noncurrent liabilities
represent the principal portion of bonds, notes, and
capital lease obligations as well as estimated amounts
of accrued compensated absences and other liabilities
that will not be paid within the next fiscal year. 

Net Assets — Net assets are reported in three
components based upon the type of external restriction
imposed.

•Unrestricted: Net assets that have no external
restriction imposed. Unrestricted net assets may 
be designated for specific purposes by the Board 
of Regents or subject to contractual limitations, 
but generally are designated to fund the academic,
research, and public service mission of the University.

•Restricted:

Expendable — Net assets that are restricted for
specific purposes by grantors, donors, or law.
Restrictions on these assets are released when the
University complies with the stipulations required
by the grantor, donor, or legislative act. 

Nonexpendable — Net assets that are required to be
retained permanently by the University. These assets
represent the principal portion (historical value) of
gifts to the University’s true and life endowment
funds, and institutional contributions to refundable
loan programs. 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstand-
ing debt used to purchase, construct, or improve
such assets. If debt has been incurred but not yet
expended for capital assets, these unspent proceeds
are classified as restricted-expendable net assets. 

If both restricted and unrestricted resources are to be
used for the same purpose, the resources are used in
accordance with applicable instructions of the grantor,
donor, or law.

Revenue Classification — The University has classified
revenues as operating or nonoperating based upon the
following criteria:

•Operating revenues result from exchange activities.
Exchange activities are transactions where the
amount received approximates the fair market value
of the goods or services given up. The University
considers student tuition and fees (net of scholarship
allowances), federal appropriations, most grants and
contracts, interest on student loans, and sales and
services of auxiliary and educational activities to be
exchange transactions.

•Nonoperating revenues represent nonexchange
activities. The primary source of these revenues is
state appropriations, gifts, capital grants, federal 
and state financial aid grants (such as Pell and
SEOG), and other nonexchange grants and contracts.
Although the institution relies upon these revenue
sources to fund the cost of operations, the grantor or
donor is not the direct recipient of the goods or
services delivered under the grant or gift terms.

Use of Estimates — To prepare the consolidated
financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, management must make estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions may
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The most significant areas that require 
the use of management’s estimates relate to allowances
for uncollectible accounts and self-insurance reserves,
scholarship discounts and allowances, arbitrage
rebates, and vacation pay and pension accruals.
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Reclassifications — Certain prior year amounts have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation used
in the current year. These reclassifications had no
impact on net assets as previously reported.

Separately budgeted departmental research of $87,968
was reclassified from instruction expense to research
expense for fiscal year 2002 to conform with the
current year presentation. In fiscal year 2003, $79,570
representing separately budgeted departmental
research was recorded as research expense.

Change in Accounting Principles 

Implementation of GASB Statements No. 34, 35, 37,
and 38 required restatement of beginning net assets at
July 1, 2001, due to the change in accounting methods
used for determining unearned income and capital and
other assets. The University also adopted the National
Association of College and University Business
Officers (NACUBO) recommendation for changing
the classification of refundable capital contributions in
the student loan funds from net assets to noncurrent
liabilities.

NACUBO’s recommendation evolved as an emerging
issue related to the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 35. 

The change in beginning net assets at July 1, 2001, is
summarized below.

Combined beginning
net assets

(in thousands)

Combined net assets, 
as previously reported $2,281,059
Unearned income recognition (61,771)
Refundable capital contributions (54,243)
Change in estimated lives 
for capital and other assets 3,976
Restated, combined net assets $2,169,021

New Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2002, the GASB issued Statement No. 39,
Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are
Component Units. This statement, which amends GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, is
effective for the University for the year ending June
30, 2004. Under GASB Statement No. 39, the
University will be required to present the financial
results of its four foundations, the University of
Minnesota Foundation, Minnesota Medical Foundation,
Minnesota Landscape Arboretum Foundation, and the
Minnesota 4-H Foundation (and potentially other
organizations meeting GASB Statement No. 39
criteria), either in a discrete or blended presentation
within the University’s financial statements. The
University currently provides condensed operating
results of the foundations within Note 7 of the
consolidated financial statements. The University 
has not yet determined the full impact of GASB
Statement No. 39 on its consolidated financial
statements.

In March 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 40,
Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures. This statement,
which amends GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with
Financial Institutions, Investments (Including Repurchase
Agreements) and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, is
effective for the University for the year ending June
30, 2005. The University will be required to address
common deposit and investment risks related to credit
risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, 
and foreign currency risk. This statement also requires
certain disclosures of investments that have fair values
that are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates.
The University is also required to disclose its deposit
and investment policies. The University has not yet
determined the full impact of GASB Statement 
No. 40 on its financial statements.
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2. Cash and Investments

Summary 

The University maintains centralized management 
for substantially all of its cash and investments. With
the exception of insurance reserves maintained by
RUMINCO, the wholly owned insurance subsidiary
(Note 9), and other funds whose terms require separate
management, the invested assets of the University are
managed through several internal investment pools.
Each investment pool has a different set of objectives
designed to maximize investment return within
consistent risk parameters established for that pool. 

In general, investment securities are exposed to
various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated
with certain investment securities, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term, and that such
changes could materially affect the amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements. 

Authorizations 

The Board of Regents establishes University investment
policies and objectives. The internal investment pools
created under these guidelines to manage the invested
assets of the University are described below. 

Temporary Investment Pool (TIP) — Short-Term
Reserves — The Temporary Investment Pool is
invested to meet the current obligations of the
University. The investment objective for TIP is to
maximize current income while preserving principal
and maintaining liquidity. The pool is invested
primarily in commercial paper, money market funds,
corporate obligations, and U.S. government and
agency securities within the credit quality and term
constraints of the portfolio. 

Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF) — The
Consolidated Endowment Fund represents the pooling
of funds from both public and private sources for
which donor intent, law, or institutional decree
determines the principal amount that must be
invested either in perpetuity or other specified time
frames. The funds are invested to achieve a return of 
at least 5 percent above inflation over a three- to 
five-year period. The allocation policy for this fund
targets a 40 percent investment in domestic equities,
20 percent investment in international equities, 
20 percent investment in alternative investments, 
and 20 percent in fixed-income related investments.
To maintain the allocation targets, the CEF may invest
in various bond and stock index futures contracts. 
The University has deposited U.S. government
securities with a market value of $3,675 at June 30,
2003, and $4,156 at June 30, 2002, as collateral for
these future commitments. 

The University distributes funds from the CEF to
activities targeted by the endowment purpose. The
annual distribution is based on the University’s
spending policy of 5 percent of the three-year 
moving average of the unit value of the fund. When
investment income is less than 5 percent, accumulated
capital gains are used to supplement investment
income to meet the spending policy. If investment
income exceeds the amount needed for distribution,
the excess remains in the respective endowment funds. 

Group Income Pool (GIP) — Long-Term Reserves —
The Group Income Pool represents assets invested 
for the purpose of various auxiliary and support-
service units as well as long-term capital purposes.
The investment objective of the GIP is to maximize
income until the principal is required for departmental
needs; therefore GIP is invested in global, fixed-income
securities through an institutional mutual fund. All
income received from these investments is available
for spending. 

Separately Invested Funds (SIF) — Separately Invested
Funds represent endowment and other restricted assets
that by the terms of the gift or by administrative
decision cannot be combined with the major
investment pools. 
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Invested Assets Related to Indebtedness (IARI) — 
Included in investments are the invested assets related
to indebtedness that are held by the bond trustee
primarily in the debt-service reserve funds of the
outstanding University bond issuances. In addition,
unspent bond proceeds held by the University are
invested for short-term income until needed for 
the capital projects for which the bonds were issued.
The market value of debt-related investments held 
by the bond trustee and internally managed was
$91,000 and $102,000 at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk, defined as the risk that the
counterparty to the transaction will not fulfill its
obligations, is categorized depending upon the degree
of risk. The degree of custodial credit risk for cash
equivalents or investments evidenced by securities is
determined by who holds the collateral insuring the
deposits or investments and under what name the
collateral is held. 

Risk Category 1: Securities that are insured or
registered or held by the University or its agent in 
the University’s name

Risk Category 2: Securities that are uninsured and
unregistered held in the University’s name by the
counterparty or its agent

Risk Category 3: Securities that are uninsured and
unregistered and held by the counterparty or its agent
in their name

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The University had cash deficits in its bank accounts
of $(10,486) and $(24,076) at June 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Balances in excess of Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation limits were $3,210 
and $857 for the same periods. The University held
risk category 1 cash equivalents of $351,206 at 
June 30, 2003, and $262,698 at June 30, 2002. 
At certain times during the year, deposits (cash)
temporarily fell into risk category 3, due to higher
cash flows arising from state appropriations, tuition
receipts, and various state or federal draws. 

Investments 

The University investment pools hold risk category 1
and uncategorized investments. Investments held at
June 30, 2003 and 2002, which include amounts held
by the University’s insurance subsidiary, are
summarized in the following table: 

2003 2002

Risk category 1 investments
Cash equivalents, noncurrent $ 75,598 $ 64,695
Government agency securities 228,874 275,365
Corporate bonds and 
preferred stock 75,864 69,724
Common stock and convertibles 200,662 242,608

Total risk category 1 investments 580,998 652,392

Noncategorized investments
Securities lending collateral 51,742 30,997
Mutual funds 170,792 168,042
Alternative investments 93,796 73,478
Other miscellaneous – 20,000

Total noncategorized investments 316,330 292,517
Total investments $897,328 $944,909

The University has entered into various forward
contracts to manage its exposure against foreign
currency exchange-rate fluctuations. As of June 30,
2003, the University had $3,376 in open foreign
currency purchase contracts and $24,579 in open
foreign currency sales contracts with a net market
value of $388. This compares to $2,374 in open
foreign currency purchase contracts and $7,553 in open
foreign currency sales contracts with a net market
value of $(281) as of June 30, 2002. In addition, the
University has entered into various hedge contracts 
to minimize interest rate risk in the debt markets.
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The following summarizes cash, securities lending and investments, including the University’s insurance
subsidiary, at June 30, 2003:

Invested
Temporary assets Securities Consolidated Group Separately
investment related to lending endowment income invested Insurance

pool indebtedness program fund pool funds subsidiary Total

Cash and cash equivalents $257,542 $  1,002 $    3,207 $    ,090 $   ,777 $  262,618
Securities lending $51,742 51,742
Short-term investments ,805 ,805
Total current assets 257,542 1,807 51,742 3,207 ,090 ,777 315,165
Restricted cash 
and cash equivalents 78,102 78,102
Investments 236,102 11,177 525,696 46,780 $561 24,464 844,780
Total noncurrent assets 236,102 89,279 525,696 46,780 561 24,464 922,882

$493,644 $91,086 $51,742 $528,903 $46,870 $561 $25,241 $1,238,047

Unrestricted amounts 
included above $230,550 $    ,00–  $14,200 $     ,0– $16,230 $,0–  $25,241 $  286,221

The following summarizes cash, securities lending and investments, including the University’s insurance
subsidiary, at June 30, 2002:

Invested
Temporary assets Securities Consolidated Group Separately
investment related to lending endowment income invested Insurance

pool indebtedness program fund pool funds subsidiary Total

Cash and cash equivalents $150,443 $    ,338 $   (1,775) $    (332) $   ,880 $  149,554
Securities lending $30,997 30,997
Short-term investments ,750 ,750
Total current assets 150,443 1,088 30,997 (1,775) ,0(332) ,880 181,301
Restricted cash 
and cash equivalents 89,068 89,068
Investments 278,554 11,822 555,870 43,172 $544 23,200 913,162
Total noncurrent assets 278,554 100,890 555,870 43,172 544 23,200 1,002,230

$428,997 $101,978 $30,997 $554,095 $42,840 $544 $24,080 $1,183,531

Unrestricted amounts 
included above $234,497 $     ,0–  $  8,129 $      ,00–  $15,518 $,0–  $24,080 $  282,224

Unrestricted cash and investments include amounts that have not been restricted for specific purposes by
grantors, donors, or law.

Securities Lending 

To enhance the return on investments, the Board of
Regents of the University has authorized participation
in a global securities lending program. The program
is managed by the University’s custodian bank, which
lends securities to approved broker-dealers in return

for cash or other acceptable collateral. By contractual
agreement, the level of collateralization must be at
least 100 percent of the market value of the securities
loaned. Types of securities lent include domestic and
foreign equities and domestic government, agency,
and corporate bonds, as well as foreign, sovereign,
fixed-income securities. Collateral received is generally



in the form of cash, although U.S. government or
agency securities, sovereign debt—rated A or better—
convertible bonds, and irrevocable bank letters of
credit are also acceptable forms of collateral. The
University retains all rights to ownership of the
loaned securities and receives all dividend and interest
income. Neither the University nor its securities
lending agent has the ability to pledge or sell
collateral securities unless a borrower defaults. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 28,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Securities Lending
Transactions, the University records the market value
of the collateral as an asset in the balance sheet along
with a corresponding liability. The University had
loaned securities with market values of approximately
$49,621 and $29,981 at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. These loaned securities were supported 
by collateral of approximately $51,742 and $30,997,
which is included as securities lending collateral in
the consolidated statements of net assets at June 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively. Of this collateral
amount, approximately $43,901 and $27,032 was
cash and approximately $7,841, and $3,965 was
acceptable noncash collateral at June 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively. 

In general, since the value of collateral received
exceeded the market value of the securities on loan,
the University’s credit risk was minimal. The
University and the borrowers of its securities maintain
the right to terminate all securities lending transactions
on demand. The cash collateral received on each loan
is invested, together with the cash collateral of other
qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective
investment pool. The average duration of such pools
were 57 and 56 days as of June 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Since the loans are terminable at will,
their duration does not generally match the duration
of the investments made with the cash collateral. 
If the University must terminate a term loan, the
lending agent has the ability to substitute the same
security from a different client while returning the
University’s security. 

Income and cost from its participation in this
securities lending program were $574 and $422,
respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2003, and
$1,331 and $1,061 at June 30, 2002, respectively. 

3. Other Asset and Liability Information
Receivables, net, and student loans receivable at June 30, 2003, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total

State and federal appropriations $109,098 $ 109,098
Sponsored grants and contracts 68,582 68,582
Notes receivable ,325 $   1,706 2,031
Student receivables 39,319 39,319
Trade receivables 57,610 57,610
Accrued interest 2,612 2,612
Other 2,736 2,736
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (8,217) (8,217)
Total receivables, net $272,065 $ 1,706 $ 273,771

Student loans receivable 16,138 55,476 71,614
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (3,259) (555) (3,814)
Student loans receivable, net $ 12,879 $ 54,921 $ 67,800
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Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2003, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total

Trade liabilities $ 8,042 $ 27,742 $ 35,784
Compensation and benefits 114,449 20,811 135,260
Self-insurance reserves 23,198 13,926 37,124
Accrued interest 5,692 ,332 6,024
Refundable advances 56,580 56,580
Other 16,688 16,688
Total accrued liabilities $168,069 $119,391 $ 287,460

Activity for certain liabilities with long-term components consisted of the following at June 30, 2003: 

Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Reductions balance portion

Compensated balances $ 61,679 $ 53,640 $ (51,757) $ 63,562 $ 54,044
Self-insurance reserves (see Note 9) 28,989 121,520 (113,385) 37,124 23,198
Refundable advances 55,166 1,414 56,580
Other 40,439 19,911 (21,208) 39,142 11,068

Receivables, net, and student loans receivable at June 30, 2002, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total

State and federal appropriations $ 130,997 $130,997
Sponsored grants and contracts 81,502 81,502
Notes receivable ,058 $ ,700 ,758
Student receivables 37,324 37,324
Trade receivables 47,259 ,780 48,039
Accrued interest 3,210 3,210
Other 3,223 3,223
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (6,603) (6,603)
Total receivables, net $ 296,970 $ 1,480 $298,450

Student loans receivable 12,885 58,097 70,982
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (3,761) (373) (4,134)
Student loans receivable, net $ 9,124 $ 57,724 $ 66,848

Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2002, consisted of the following:

Current Noncurrent Total

Trade liabilities $ 21,010 $ 16,232 $ 37,242
Compensation and benefits 107,211 23,159 130,370
Self-insurance 17,256 11,733 28,989
Accrued interest 2,303 3,684 5,987
Refundable advances 55,166 55,166
Other 14,850 14,850
Total accrued liabilities $ 162,630 $109,974 $272,604
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Activity for certain liabilities with long-term components consisted of the following at June 30, 2002: 

Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Reductions balance portion

Compensated balances $ 60,080 $ 52,926 $ (51,327) $ 61,679 $ 50,918
Self-insurance reserves (see Note 9) 18,953 53,883 (43,847) 28,989 17,256
Refundable advances 55,166 55,166
Other 27,150 29,849 (16,560) 40,439 20,523

4. Capital Assets 
Capital assets, net at June 30, 2003, consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Transfers Retirements balance

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings and improvements $1,933,018 $   261,619 $(17,516) $2,177,121
Leasehold improvements 617 617
Equipment

Technology 198,521 $  13,652 (31,387) 180,786
Other equipment 353,566 31,365 (2,366) (25,856) 356,709

Infrastructure 278,158 631 19,409 298,198
Library and reference books 96,935 10,508 (8,592) 98,851

Total depreciable capital assets 2,860,815 56,156 278,662 (83,351) 3,112,282

Nondepreciable capital assets
Land 34,852 856 (118) 35,590
Museums and collections 29,913 4,076 (1) 33,988
Construction in progress 204,965 119,796 (278,662) (129) 45,970

Total nondepreciable capital assets 269,730 124,728 (278,662) (248) 115,548

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements 824,987 61,322 (17,167) 869,142
Leasehold improvements 119 72 191
Equipment

Technology 133,674 24,168 (30,860) 126,982
Other equipment 229,543 24,927 (23,274) 231,196

Infrastructure 106,784 8,914 (9) 115,689
Library and reference books 45,743 9,789 (8,591) 46,941

Total accumulated depreciation 1,340,850 129,192 (79,901) 1,390,141
Net capital assets $1,789,695 $  51,692 $             – $  (3,698) $1,837,689

Summary
Depreciable capital assets $2,860,815 $  56,156 $   278,662 $(83,351) $3,112,282
Nondepreciable capital assets 269,730 124,728 (278,662) (248) 115,548

Total capital assets 3,130,545 180,884 (83,599) 3,227,830

Less accumulated depreciation 1,340,850 129,192 (79,901) 1,390,141
Capital assets, net $1,789,695 $  51,692 $             – $  (3,698) $1,837,689
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Capital assets, net at June 30, 2002, consisted of the following:

Beginning GASB Ending
balance adjustment Additions Transfers Retirements balance

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings and improvements $1,854,391 $(196,034) $   1,708 $  273,023 $      (70) $1,933,018
Leasehold improvements 617 617
Equipment

Technology 230,136 25,273 3,182 (60,070) 198,521
Other equipment 351,198 32,541 (2,053) (28,120) 353,566

Infrastructure 50,254 192,650 14,538 20,716 278,158
Library and reference books 92,513 11,349 (6,927) 96,935

Total depreciable capital assets 2,578,492 (3,384) 85,409 295,485 (95,187) 2,860,815

Nondepreciable capital assets
Land 34,117 (521) 1,256 34,852
Museums and collections 28,918 995 29,913
Construction in progress 263,553 2,106 234,743 (295,437) 204,965

Total nondepreciable capital assets 326,588 1,585 236,994 (295,437) 269,730

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements 846,113 (74,350) 53,224 824,987
Leasehold improvements 71 48 119
Equipment

Technology 167,315 24,836 (58,477) 133,674
Other equipment 232,245 23,511 (26,213) 229,543

Infrastructure 28,730 70,127 7,927 106,784
Library and reference books 43,198 9,472 (6,927) 45,743

Total accumulated depreciation 1,317,601 (4,223) 119,041 48 (91,617) 1,340,850
Net capital assets $1,587,479 $     2,424 $203,362 $             – $(3,570) $1,789,695

Summary
Depreciable capital assets $2,578,492 $    (3,384) $  85,409 $  295,485 $(95,187) $2,860,815
Nondepreciable capital assets 326,588 1,585 236,994 (295,437) 269,730

Total capital assets 2,905,080 (1,799) 322,403 48 (95,187) 3,130,545

Less accumulated depreciation 1,317,601 (4,223) 119,041 48 (91,617) 1,340,850
Capital assets, net $1,587,479 $     2,424 $203,362 $             – $  (3,570) $1,789,695
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5. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at June 30, 2003, consisted of the following:

Due at
various

Interest dates Beginning Ending Current
rate through balance Additions Reductions balance portion

General obligation bonds
Series 2003A 4.39% 2031 $71,000 $  71,000
Series 2001C 4.40% 2004 $159,950 159,950 $159,950
Series 2001B 4.33% 2004 3,500 $     250 3,250 3,250
Series 2001A 3.08% 2004 16,500 1,935 14,565 14,565
Series 1999A 4.16% 2004 192,600 8,400 184,200 184,200
Series 1996A 4.50% to 5.75% 2021 184,748 7,040 177,708 6,039
Series 1993A 4.80% 2003 84,000 84,000 84,000

Obligations to the state 
of Minnesota pursuant
to Infrastructure 
Development Bonds 4.00% to 6.90% 2022 60,003 9,033 4,755 64,281 4,761
Auxiliary revenue bonds 3.00% 2013 10,816 750 10,066 805
Capital leases and other 1.56% to 8.00% 2011 7,156 1,663 2,241 6,578 1,586
Total $719,273 $81,696 $25,371 $775,598 $459,156

Long-term debt at June 30, 2002, consisted of the following:
Due at
various

Interest dates Beginning Ending Current
rate through balance Additions Reductions balance portion

General obligation bonds
Series 2001C 4.40% 2005 $159,950 $159,950 $39,987
Series 2001B 4.33% 2003 3,500 3,500 3,500
Series 2001A 3.08% 2003 16,500 16,500 16,500
Series 1999A 4.16% 2003 $200,650 $8,050 192,600 192,600
Series 1996A 4.50% to 5.75% 2021 190,787 6,039 184,748 7,039
Series 1993A 4.80% 2003 84,000 84,000

Obligations to the state 
of Minnesota pursuant 
to Infrastructure
Development Bonds 4.00% to 6.90% 2022 51,979 12,316 4,292 60,003 4,303
Auxiliary revenue bonds 3.00% 2013 11,535 719 10,816 750
Capital leases and other 2.19% to 8.00% 2011 6,589 3,356 2,789 7,156 1,588
Total $545,540 $195,622 $21,889 $719,273 $266,267
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General Obligation Bonds

In November 2001, the Board of Regents of the
University of Minnesota authorized the issuance of
new general obligation debt securities to provide funds
for certain approved capital projects, costs of issuance,
and refunding of the Series 1993A bonds. Of the
$501,000 of debt authorized under the February 2001
and November 2001 resolutions, $380,600 was issued
for the Series 1999A and 2001 bonds, $71,000 was
issued for the 2003A bonds for the refunding of the
Series 1993A bonds; $49,400 remains unissued.

On May 20, 2003, the University issued $71,000
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A.
The bond proceeds were applied, along with certain
additional funds provided by the University, to the
refunding on August 15, 2003, of the University’s
$84,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1993A.

Under generally accepted accounting principles, the
Series 2001A, 2001B, 2001C, and 1999A bonds are
defined as demand bonds because bondholders have
the option to put the bonds back (demand repayment)
to the University at any time. In the absence of
standby bond purchase agreements, the University has
classified the entire obligation of the Series 2001A,
2001B, and 1999A bonds as current liabilities. As of
the date of this report, none of the bondholders has
exercised the put option. Thus, management believes
that the bond obligations will continue to be met in
accordance with the longer-term payment schedules
provided for within the bond prospectuses.

In October 2002, the University entered into a
standby bond purchase agreement to provide liquidity
support for the Series 2001C bonds. The agreement
provides for four installment payments at six-month
intervals of the bonds put back to the banks holding
the agreement. No amounts have been drawn under
this agreement through June 30, 2003. The standby
bond purchase agreement that will expire on
December 17, 2003, provided for the long-term
classification of the majority of the 2001C bonds 
at June 30, 2002. The terms of this agreement will
not be renewed, and no additional agreement has 
been entered into that would allow for long-term
presentation of the 2001C bonds at June 30, 2003.
The University anticipates entering into a new
standby bond purchase agreement prior to the
expiration of the existing agreement.

In connection with the issuance of the 2003A, 2001A,
2001B, 2001C, and 1999A variable-rate bonds, the
University entered into floating-to-fixed interest-rate
swap agreements for notional amounts tied to the
outstanding balance of the bonds. The University
makes monthly payments at fixed rates between 
3.08 percent and 4.40 percent and receives the
weighted average rate that was paid to the bondholders
during the previous month. The final maturity dates
of the swaps are tied to the final maturity dates of the
underlying bonds. With the exception of the Series
2001B taxable bonds, the University treats these
swaps as qualified hedges with respect to such bonds.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 1996A
bonds, the University has entered into a fixed-to-
floating interest-rate swap agreement on a notional
amount of $190,000. The University makes floating-
rate interest payments monthly based upon the weekly
Bond Market Association (BMA) Municipal Swap
Index. The interest obligation for future years is
calculated on the basis of the interest rate in effect 
at June 30, 2003, of 0.98 percent. The actual rates 
to be paid to bondholders over the life of the bonds
will be at rates determined on the basis of prevailing
market conditions. The University receives fixed-rate
interest payments ranging from 4.45 to 5.43 percent
semiannually. The final maturity date of this swap 
is in 2021, although there are specified notional
reductions annually that began in 2001. The
University treats this swap as a qualified hedge 
with respect to such bonds.

The University has sold a put option, which allows
the counterparty to put up to $177,709 at June 30,
2003, and $184,748 at June 30, 2002, of Series 1996A
University bonds or eligible AAA-rated governmental
or municipal securities to the University. This option
may be exercised at any time. At the date of this report,
the counterparty has not exercised the put option.

All general obligation bonds are secured by the full
faith and credit of the University and subject to
mandatory sinking fund requirements set forth in the
prospectuses. In addition, the bonds are tax-exempt
with the exception of the $3,500 Series 2001B.

Auxiliary Bonds 

The University’s auxiliary bonds are secured by the
net revenues of the auxiliary activity to which they
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relate, debt-service subsidy grants provided by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development, 
and the full faith and credit of the University. 
The auxiliary bond agreements require minimum
mandatory reserves sufficient to cover the principal
and interest due in any future fiscal year. To comply
with this requirement, the University set aside $1,301
at June 30, 2003, and $1,216 at June 30, 2002, for
future debt service. An additional $11,481 and
$11,694 was set aside for building replacement
reserves for June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
These mandatory reserves are included in restricted
expendable net assets in the financial statements.

Infrastructure Development Bond Obligations

Pursuant to Minnesota law, the University is obligated
to pay the state one third of the debt services of

infrastructure development bonds issued by the 
state for University capital projects. The amount of
outstanding debt issued by the state on behalf of the
University was $192,845 as of June 30, 2003, and
$180,011 as of June 30, 2002.

Capital Leases and Other Debt 

Capital lease and other commitments consist of fleet
vehicle leases, a real estate contract for deed, and a
note payable. The leases bear interest rates between
1.56 percent and 2.54 percent with none extending
beyond 2011. The real estate contract for deed bears
interest at 8.00 percent and is due 2011. The note
payable for equipment bears interest at 6.30 percent
and is due 2006.
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Long-term debt obligations for the next five years and in subsequent five year periods:
Capital

Bonds and lease Total Net Total
obligations and other principal interest obligations

Fiscal year ending June 30
2004 $457,571 $1,585 $459,156 $  21,267 $480,423
2005 12,709 1,524 14,233 9,253 23,486
2006 13,251 1,371 14,622 8,037 22,659
2007 13,198 1,076 14,274 7,555 21,829
2008 13,015 621 13,636 7,088 20,724
2009-2013 65,737 401 66,138 28,836 94,974
2014-2018 73,885 73,885 19,026 92,911
2019-2023 86,104 86,104 11,213 97,317
2024-2028 16,800 16,800 5,962 22,762
2029-2033 16,750 16,750 1,881 18,631

$769,020 $6,578 $775,598 $120,118 $895,716

Defeased Bonds

In prior years, the University defeased various bonds
by placing the proceeds from new bond issuances into
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. The defeased
bonds are as follows:

Amount
Amount outstanding at
defeased June 30, 2003

General obligation bonds
1982 Series A $112,635 $29,600

Neither the outstanding indebtedness nor the related
trust account assets for the defeased bonds are
included in the University’s financial statements.



6. Pension Plans

Description of Plans

The University contributes to a single-employer
defined contribution plan, the Faculty Retirement
Plan (FRP), and two cost-sharing, multiple-employer,
defined benefit plans—the State Employees’
Retirement Fund (SERF) of the Minnesota State
Retirement System and the Public Employee Police
and Fire Fund (PEPFF) of the Public Employees
Retirement Association pension plans. In addition,
some employees eligible for the FRP may be eligible
for additional benefits from the University of
Minnesota Supplemental Benefits Plan (SBP), 
which is a single-employer defined benefit plan. 
For faculty members employed prior to 1963 and
female participants employed prior to July 1, 1982,
the SBP is being funded in an amount equal to or

greater than the amount required under Chapter 356
of the Minnesota Statutes. All SBP participants are
retired. Each plan provides retirement, disability, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 

SERF and PEPFF each issue a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for that plan.
Those reports may be obtained by writing or calling
the plan, as follows: 

Minnesota State Retirement System
60 Empire Drive, Suite 300
St. Paul, Minnesota 55103-1855
651-296-2761

Public Employees Retirement Association
60 Empire Drive, Suite 200
St. Paul, Minnesota 55103-1855
651-296-7460 or 1-800-652-9026
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Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost 

The University’s annual pension cost and related information for each plan is as follows:
FRP SERF PEPFF SBP

University contributions—fiscal year 
ended June 30

2003 $57,575 $14,151 $272 $436
2002 53,331 13,672 257 528
2001 48,164 12,773 232 927

Current contribution rates
University 13.0% 4.0% 9.3%
Plan members 2.5% 4.0% 6.2%

Annual pension cost N/A $13,672 $257 $315
Actuarial valuation date N/A 6/30/02 6/30/02 7/01/02
Actuarial cost method N/A Entry age Entry age Entry age

Level Level Level dollar
Amortization method N/A percentage of percent, amount by

salary, open closed 6/30/21, closed
Remaining amortization period N/A 30 years 30 years 30 years

Fair market Fair market Fair market
Asset valuation method N/A value, smoothed value, smoothed value, smoothed

over 4 years over 5 years over 4 years
Actuarial assumptions

Investment rate of return N/A 8.5% 8.5% 5.0%
Projected salary increase N/A 5.0–6.75% 5.25–11.5% 3.5%
Assumed inflation rate N/A 5.0% 5.0% 2.5%

No Determined byCost of living adjustment N/A 2.5%
assumptions formula, varies

These contribution amounts are equal to contractually required contributions for each year in compliance with
state statute. The University makes all contributions to the SBP using a variable rate.



The following information pertains to the SBP as of July 1:
2002 2001 2000

Pension benefit obligation $12,980 $14,133 $15,061
Net assets available for benefits 7,842 8,695 9,240
Unfunded accrued liability $  5,138 $  5,438 $  5,821

Funded ratio (net assets as a percentage of the pension benefit obligation) 60.42% 61.52% 61.35%

The actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits in the SBP was not calculated.
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The plans invest in various securities including U.S.
government securities, corporate debt instruments,
mutual funds, and corporate stocks. Investment
securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such
as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility.
Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is reasonably possible that
changes in the values of investment securities will
occur in the near term and that such changes could
materially affect the amounts reported for net assets
available for plan benefits.

7. Related Parties
The University of Minnesota Foundation, the
Minnesota Medical Foundation, the Minnesota
Landscape Arboretum Foundation, and the Minnesota
4-H Foundation (the foundations) are independent
corporations formed for the purpose of obtaining and
disbursing funds for the sole benefit of the University. 
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A summarized, condensed unaudited statement of net assets and statement of activities at June 30, 2003, 
as well as a summary of other related transactions with the foundations is as follows: 

Minnesota
University of Minnesota Landscape Minnesota
Minnesota Medical Arboretum 4-H
Foundation Foundation Foundation Foundation Total

Condensed statement of net assets
Assets 

Noncapital assets $1,087,345 $249,137 $34,997 $   5,703 $1,377,182
Capital assets 1,252 518 12 1,782

Total assets 1,088,597 249,655 34,997 5,715 1,378,964

Liabilities
Liabilities (all current) 182,106 15,034 538 172 197,850

Net assets
Unrestricted net assets 36,534 8,648 4,021 81 49,284
Temporary restricted net assets 516,629 121,788 21,113 2,977 662,507
Permanently restricted net assets 353,328 104,185 9,325 2,485 469,323

Net assets at June 30, 2003 $   906,491 $234,621 $34,459 $   5,543 $1,181,114

Condensed statement of activities
Net assets at June 30, 2002 $   874,634 $230,602 $32,392 $   5,861 $1,143,489
Plus

Gifts and pledges 63,587 43,623 10,231 507 117,948
Investment income 14,884 4,129 360 29 19,402
Appreciation (depreciation) 
on investments 47,120 1,127 739 266 49,252
Other revenues 4,091 (252) 737 43 4,619

Less
Distributions to the University (79,380) (37,111) (9,065) (1,002) (126,558)
General expenses (18,445) (7,497) (935) (161) (27,038)

Net assets at June 30, 2003 $   906,491 $234,621 $34,459 $   5,543 $1,181,114

Other information
Funds disbursed to or on 
behalf of the University $     79,380 $  36,873 $  8,377 $   1,002 $   125,632
Funds collected from the University 1,950 215 25 2,190
Nonmonetary goods distributed 
to the University 238 688 926
Related-party receivables and 
payables at June 30, 2003

Due to the University 1,491 3,117 119 241 4,968
Due from the University 273 273



A summarized, condensed unaudited statement of net assets and statement of activities at June 30, 2002, 
as well as a summary of other related transactions with the foundations is as follows: 

Minnesota
University of Minnesota Landscape Minnesota
Minnesota Medical Arboretum 4-H
Foundation Foundation Foundation Foundation Total

Condensed statement of net assets
Assets

Noncapital assets $1,006,116 $244,699 $32,901 $6,013 $1,289,729
Capital assets 1,559 596 22 2,177

Total assets 1,007,675 245,295 32,901 6,035 1,291,906

Liabilities
Liabilities (all current) 133,041 14,693 509 174 148,417

Net assets
Unrestricted net assets 40,541 8,697 3,997 77 53,312
Temporary restricted net assets 509,880 121,357 20,281 3,442 654,960
Permanently restricted net assets 324,213 100,548 8,114 2,342 435,217

Net assets at June 30, 2002 $   874,634 $230,602 $32,392 $5,861 $1,143,489

Condensed statement of activities
Net assets at June 30, 2001 $   893,184 $260,042 $33,054 $5,022 $1,191,302
Plus

Gifts and pledges 63,295 44,428 3,321 1,713 112,757
Investment income 17,587 1,734 682 43 20,046
Appreciation (depreciation) 
on investments (12,531) (33,227) 120 (59) (45,697)
Other revenues 4,819 1,017 725 233 6,794

Less
Distributions to the University (74,499) (37,907) (4,809) (687) (117,902)
General expenses (17,221) (5,485) (701) (404) (23,811)

Net assets at June 30, 2002 $   874,634 $230,602 $32,392 $5,861 $1,143,489

Other information
Funds disbursed to or on behalf 
of the University $     74,455 $  37,246 $  4,059 $   687 $  116,447
Funds collected from the University 1,180 604 129 1,913
Nonmonetary goods distributed
to the University 44 661 750 1,455
Related-party receivables and 
payables at June 30, 2002

Due to the University 1,342 3,727 109 94 5,272
Due from the University 454 454

The foundations are subject to audit by other independent auditors. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies
On December 31, 1996, the University of Minnesota
Hospital and Clinic (UMHC) operations and certain
assets and liabilities were transferred to Fairview
Hospital and Healthcare Services (Fairview). Fairview
and the University also agreed to affiliate with each
other in support of research, education, and patient
care missions of the University’s Academic Health
Center (AHC). Under this affiliation agreement, the
University shares equally with Fairview in any deficit
in the research and education budget. 

The University also provides certain services to
Fairview, and Fairview provides certain services 
to the University, to be reimbursed at negotiated
rates. These services include items such as utilities,
mailing and addressing services, police protection,
printing services, miscellaneous services related to
telecommunications, and such other items as are
necessary to support the relationship, for which
$7,577 and $7,120 was billed to Fairview in fiscal
years 2003 and 2002, respectively. Fairview billed 
the University $396 and $716 in fiscal years 2003 
and 2002, respectively, for pharmaceuticals, medical
professionals, and transcription services. 

Construction projects in progress, principally buildings,
approximate $45,970 and $204,965 at June 30, 2003

and 2002, respectively. The estimated cost to
complete these facilities is $186,144 and $451,575,
which is to be funded from plant fund assets, and
$85,906 and $115,344 in appropriations available
from the state of Minnesota at June 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively. 

The University owns certain steam production
facilities, which produce steam for heating and cooling
the Twin Cities campuses and which, by agreement,
are managed, operated, and maintained by an
unaffiliated company. The term of the agreement is 
for 25 years and commenced July 1, 1992. Under the
agreement, the University must make minimum fixed
payments for certain operating and maintenance costs as
well as contingent payments based on monthly usage. 

The University is obligated under various operating
leases for the use of real property and equipment.
Total operating lease expenditures for the years ended
June 30, 2003 and 2002, were $13,448 and $16,443,
respectively, of which $10,347 and $10,385 were for
real property and $3,101 and $6,058 were for
equipment, respectively. 

The University has entered into several swap contracts
to manage the interest-rate risk in the debt portfolio.
The contracts effectively convert the University’s
variable rates to fixed rates. 
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The future commitments at June 30, 2003, are as follows: 
Steam plant, operating lease, and swap contract 
commitments for the next five years and in Steam Operating Swap
subsequent five-year periods: plant leases contracts Total

Fiscal year ending June 30 
2004 $  6,217 $  8,271 $    2,803 $  17,291
2005 6,217 6,814 2,803 15,834
2006 6,217 5,651 2,803 14,671
2007 6,217 5,154 2,803 14,174
2008 6,217 4,645 2,803 13,665
2009–2013 31,086 19,044 82,602 132,732
2014–2018 24,869 3,661 75,545 104,075

Total commitments 87,040 53,240 172,162 312,442
Less current portion (6,217) (8,271) (2,803) (17,291)

Long-term commitments $80,823 $44,969 $169,359 $295,151



The University is a defendant in cases involving
claims of medical malpractice, personal injuries,
breach of contract, and other civil matters. While 
any litigation has an element of uncertainty and the
University cannot, therefore, predict how these cases
will be finally resolved, management and its general
counsel believe the outcomes of the cases, individually
and combined, will not have a material adverse effect
on the overall financial position of the University. 

9. Self-Insurance Programs
The University is self-insured for medical malpractice,
general liability, directors and officers liability, and
automobile liability through RUMINCO, Ltd., a
wholly owned single parent captive insurance company
(see Note 2). Claims are reported to a third-party
administrator, which pays expenses and sets up
reserves. The total expense of a claim is estimated and
booked as a liability when it is probable that a loss has
occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated in the year in which it is reported. In
addition, an actuarial liability is established for
incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims. 

The University is also self-insured for workers’
compensation through an internally maintained fund,
and excess insurance is maintained through the

Workers’ Compensation Reinsurance Association
(WCRA). The internal fund for workers’ compensation
is maintained only to fund the current year’s expected
payouts. Each year, an actuarial estimate of the
University’s liability for workers’ compensation is
compiled and recorded, but the liability is not
separately funded. 

Effective December 31, 2001, the University changed
its medical (health) coverage for faculty and staff 
from the State of Minnesota’s State Employees Group
Insurance Program (SEGIP) to a self-insured program
(UPlan). Under the UPlan, the University pays claims
and establishes reserves, and the administration of the
program is handled by four independent administrators:
Definity Health, HealthPartners, Patient Choice, and
Preferred One. Two carriers provide medical conversion
policies to the University under which terminated
employees are able to convert their UPlan coverage to
single coverage once their continuation (COBRA)
rights expire.  The University also carries stop-loss
coverage, which protects the University against the
risk that an individual participant will incur medical
expenses greater than $200,000 in a single year.
Annually, an actuarial estimate of the University’s
liability for medical claims, including IBNR, is
recorded.
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Changes in reported liabilities since June 30, 2002, are shown below:
Liability, New Claim Other Liability,

beginning of year claims payments adjustments end of year

RUMINCO, Ltd. $  6,492 $   2,057 $   (1,032) $     140 $  7,657
Workers’ compensation 9,000 3,148 (3,489) 3,341 12,000
UPlan medical 13,497 111,943 (108,864) 891 17,467

Changes in reported liabilities since June 30, 2001, are shown below:
Liability, New Claim Other Liability,

beginning of year claims payments adjustments end of year

RUMINCO, Ltd. $  8,153 $      840 $   (2,476) $     (25) $  6,492
Workers’ compensation 10,800 798 (1,305) (1,293) 9,000
UPlan medical 40,464 (38,748) 11,781 13,497

Other adjustments reflect reserve changes on prior years’ claims and changes in estimated IBNR.



10. Operating Expenses by Natural Classification
Operating expenses by natural classification for June 30, 2003, are summarized as follows:

Compensation Supplies Scholarships
and and and

Function benefits services fellowships Depreciation Total

Instruction $   490,983 $  78,392 $   569,375
Research 292,360 119,208 411,568
Public service 111,532 47,381 158,913
Academic support 191,724 80,266 271,990
Student services 55,573 12,567 68,140
Institutional support 105,235 13,105 118,340
Operation and maintenance of plant 82,715 77,525 160,240
Scholarships and fellowships 3,883 291 $63,287 67,461
Depreciation $ 129,191 129,191
Auxiliary enterprises 66,018 95,607 161,625
Other operating expense 896 896

$1,400,023 $525,238 $63,287 $ 129,191 $2,117,739

Operating expenses by natural classification for June 30, 2002, are summarized as follows:
Compensation Supplies Scholarships

and and and
Function benefits services fellowships Depreciation Total

Instruction $   457,444 $  76,807 $   534,251
Research 277,708 144,088 421,796
Public service 107,749 44,488 152,237
Academic support 182,216 61,819 244,035
Student services 55,707 11,288 66,995
Institutional support 99,424 4,232 103,656
Operation and maintenance of plant 79,901 68,351 148,252
Scholarships and fellowships 3,669 245 $55,075 58,989
Depreciation $ 119,041 119,041
Auxiliary enterprises 63,370 87,048 150,418
Other operating expense 486 486

$1,327,188 $498,852 $55,075 $ 119,041 $2,000,156
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